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Use as much space as necessary to complete the following entries, allowing text to flow onto additional continuation sheets.
ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION    
Describe architectural, structural and landscape features and evaluate in terms of other areas within the community. 
The Glenwood Industrial Area consists of two blocks at the far eastern edge of East Medford, bordered on the east by the Fellsway West, on the south by the former right-of-way of the Medford Branch Line of the Boston and Maine Railroad, on the north by Myrtle Street, and on the west by Amaranth Place, an access road for a modern housing complex at the western edge of the Area known as the Amaranth Place Condominium Complex (1-5 Amaranth Place, 2005). The sharp angle of Myrtle Street means the lots are roughly triangular in shape. The Malden town line is just across the Fellsway. The Fellsway overpass bridge on the southeast side of the complex, accommodating the railroad right-of-way, provides a distinct boundary on the east side with that highway structure rising higher than many of the low-slung buildings at this end of the area.  Amaranth Avenue bisects the Area on its western side. The Area consists of three discrete complexes: one, on the west side of Amaranth Avenue, the former pipe yard and related office building of the Metropolitan Water Works (MDF. 123, 56 Amaranth Ave, 1901). On the larger block on the east side of this street stands the Glenwood Dye Works Complex (56 Amaranth Ave, 1892-1916) and the New England-Anderson Pressed Brick Company Complex (970 Fellsway, 1886-1958).  The latter two, separate for most of their history, were merged into a single complex in the mid twentieth century by low-slung concrete-block extensions.   All of the extant buildings in the Area are masonry, of red brick or concrete block, rising one or two stories high. A large paved parking lot separates Myrtle Street, at the north end of the area, from the building complex. 

The most distinctive building in the area is the Office and Tool Shop of the Glenwood Yard of the Metropolitan Water Works (A, MDF.123). Standing along Amaranth Avenue, close to the sidewalk, this Flemish Revival style building is two-and-one-half stories tall, with red brick laid in a Flemish bond pattern. With the ridge of its roofline parallel to the street, the side-gabled roof has stepped gable ends. An open-rafter roof, the rafter ends are shaped. A stepped-gable dormer breaks the roofline in the center of the Amaranth Avenue elevation. It is flanked by tall brick chimneys. Two hip-roof dormers break the roof on each side of this appendage. The roof is further broken on the right side by a stepped fire wall, suggesting the internal division of the building.  The first floor fenestration of the front elevation is asymmetrical, with six small square windows, likely indicative of the former location of horse stables within, on the left side of this elevation, and informally arranged double-hung windows and an arch-top door on the right side. A large garage door is placed in the center of the building.  Contrasting with the asymmetry of the first floor, the second floor fenestration is more regularly arranged, with six windows flanking an arch-top hayloft door. The left gable end fenestration has a paired window in the center of the second floor with additional high, square windows on the first. The right gable end has three regularly arranged, double-hung windows. The rear elevation, facing onto the former pipe yard, has three large garage bays on the right side. Three double-hung windows, an entrance door, and a canted bay window, executed in brick, occupies the left side. The roof is pierced by six regularly-spaced hip-roof dormers on this side, with a stepped brick fire wall separating the right-most two.  Window openings throughout are supported by brick jack arches, while the garage doors on the rear elevation have segmental arch tops. A paired window to the right of the main door on front elevation is supported by a relieving arch. The windows on the right elevation are also supported in this manner. The Amaranth Avenue elevation is enhanced by Flemish/Tudor revival detailing. This includes most prominently a limestone surround at the central garage door. The surround has corner quoins and a gothic arch shaped opening flanked by two canted piers. These piers are capped by balls on a pedestal. A patterned brick roundel ornaments the apex of the gable on the right side elevation.  An iron fire escape runs from the central dormer on the front elevation. Windows throughout are vinyl false-mullion sash, mimicking the original wooden sash. The garage doors have likewise been substituted by modern vinyl replacements. The roof is covered in asphalt shingles, replacing the original slate. Period photographs depict a large octagonal ventilating cupola with a dome roof, since removed. 
A one-story, gambrel roof Equipment Shed also in the Flemish Revival style, open on its west side, formerly stood at the end of Amaranth Avenue, to the south of the Office and Tool Shop. Contemporaneous with the office and tool shop, it featured much of the same articulation.  It was demolished to make way for the Amaranth Place Condominium Complex (U), consisting of three rows of long, two-and-one-half story wood frame buildings, clad if vinyl siding, with false-mullion windows and mock shutters. These buildings high basements accommodate garages, accessed through a parking lot at the center of the complex. They fill the former open yards of the pipe works, running along Myrtle Street and the southern part of Amaranth Place. 

On the opposite side of Amaranth Avenue stands the Glenwood Dye Works Complex.  The complex, the result of multiple stages of development between 1892 and 1910 stands as six, two-story, red-brick buildings arranged around an open service courtyard at the center of the complex, since enclosed. From the street the buildings display two distinct phases of construction, distinguished by different articulation of the brickwork and piers. The oldest part of the complex consist of the Dye house
 (B, 1892), Stock Room (C, c.1892-97), and Storage Room (D, 1901). These buildings consist of pressed red brick, rising two stories to a brick corbel cornice and heavy piers. Wide segmental arch windows with stepped brick shoulders and granite sills fill these bays on the second floor. Segmental arch windows with brickwork caps fill the first floor opening.  These windows originally contained 15/15 wooden double-hung sash. These have since been removed in most openings and filled with concrete block lit by small, square, fixed sash. This configuration is seen on 22 bays along the building’s southern elevation, encompassing both the original Dye House and the later Stock Room. The elevation originally fronted on a spur off of the Medford Branch Line; a concrete loading platform marks the former location of this feature. A stair tower, added to this elevation between 1903 and 1910 is distinguished by a darker brick color. This appendage marks the division between the Dye Room and the Stock Room. Its current flat roof, lacking a cornice, suggests it was once a taller appendage, likely with an articulated cap, since removed.  The Dye Room has been expanded by a one-story, shed-roof modern loading dock at the eastern end of the first floor. At the far end of the south elevation is the Boiler Room (I, 1892, expanded 1897). A one-story brick building, its six-bay fenestration is made up of segmental arched windows with stepped brick shoulders and granite sills alternating with segmental arch top windows. The three westernmost bays are original, the eastern three were added shortly after the building was completed. A series of brick piers runs along the western elevation of the Boiler Room. A tall brick chimney with battered sides rises from the roof. 
Along Amaranth Avenue there are seventeen bays of the same configuration as seen on the southern elevation; five in the Stock Room, twelve in the Storage Room. The division between the two buildings cannot be distinguished on this elevation. In front of the Stock Room stands the office, a minor addition of c. 1903-1910. This is a single-story brick building made up of brick piers and a stepped corbel cornice. The office has a canted bay window on its southern elevation. This building’s wide windows have been filled in. It does retain a distinctive elliptical stair to its main entrance door, in the third bay, executed in cast concrete.  A one-story concrete block addition of mid-twentieth century vintage stands in front of the Storage building, obscuring its original first floor.  A simple facade, this building has narrow windows placed high in the wall, since enclosed.  Two flat-panel metal doors provide access to this space, reached by wooden stairs of a recent vintage. The newer part of the complex includes the Bleach House (E, 1903-1910, expanded 1916) and the Paint Room (F, 1903-1910).  Two bays of the Bleach house continue the plane of the Storage room, before expanding forward to the sidewalk of Amaranth Avenue for another six bays. The Bleach House is notable for its wide arched passageways on the first floor. One on the main elevation provided access to the center courtyard. The other two are entered through the flanking elevations and run parallel to the street, indicative of a passageway through the front of this part of the building.   A cast concrete date plaque reading “1916” rest on the lower left corner of the Bleach House, along Amaranth Avenue, signaling a lateral expansion of the building that year. The front façade of this building is executed in a higher glaze brick than the rest of the complex.  Divided into six bays by brick piers, the building has tall full arched windows on the first and shorter segmental arched windows on the second, except in the outer bay, where another full arch is placed. The arches are called out with cast concrete keystones. A cast concrete belt course acts as sill for the first floor windows, and demarcates the two levels. The windows on the second floor have individual concrete sills. This building is notable for the patterned brick work in the spandrel panel below each of the second floor windows.  Above a stepped corbel cornice changes in the brickwork suggest a since-removed cornice in this area.  The long northern elevation of the Bleach house is the result of the 1916 expansion and is executed in a lower-glazed brick. The elevation consists of 16 bays of brick piers, topped by segmental arches, articulated with cast concrete keystones.  The basement is higher on this level, rising to a half story, lit by flat-top windows with jack arch caps. The first floor windows, wide and nearly square are also flat-topped, with concrete sills, jack arch caps, and cast concrete keystones. The second floor windows follow the shape of the segmental arches between the piers.  
The Paint Room (F, 1903-1910) repeats the pattern of the older buildings on the southern side of the complex. It is distinguished from the newer Bleach House not only by its varying fenestration but its lower roofline. This is extended to the south by the Soaping Room (H, 1903-1910), which fully encloses the courtyard. Part of the Paint Room’s north elevation is obscured by the narrow Varnishing Room (G, 1910-1936). This building has a low shed roof, and wide, flat-top windows between brick piers. It is two bays wide and six bays deep. It is further expanded to the north by the Loading Dock, a large, one-story, flat-roof, building. Executed in unarticulated brick it has a single garage door and three small windows along is western elevation, and loading docks (S, post-1956) along the north side. 
The Loading Dock of the former Glenwood Dye works connects that complex to the former New England-Anderson Pressed Brick Company Complex. These buildings are more heavily altered, and earlier fabric is more obscured by later additions. The higher, more open and single-level spaces of these buildings reflect their original uses by building material manufacturers, and contrasts to the regularity and legibility of the adjoining textile buildings. The Main Shop (J, 1886) stands at the center of the complex, facing south toward the Medford Branch Line. The long, narrow footprint of this building reflects the innovative tunnel-kiln process of the Anderson Brick Company.  While sizable this facility was markedly smaller than their Chicago plant, with a 672-foot long tunnel kiln. A high single story, the long, narrow building has flat brick walls punctured by segmental arch windows placed high in the wall. It is surmounted by a brick dentil cornice. Numerous skylights puncture the low-gabled roof. Along the west elevation is the lower, one-story Clay House (K, 1886). This building has a stepped gable roof and a brick dentil cornice. A tall brick chimney with a corbel top, since extended, rises from the front of the Clay House.  Between the Clay House and the Main Shop is the Old Office (L, 1886). With a square footprint, the building’s two extant stories are punctured by large windows supported by iron lintels. It is surmounted by an elaborate brick corbel cornice, the most architecturally significant part of the complex and a reflection of its original occupant’s interest in decorative brick work. A third level to the tower and its hipped roof cap have since been removed. A brick arched porch in front of this building has also been removed or obscured by later additions. The original Clay House is extended northward by the Machine Shop (M, 1897-1930), the Iron Shed (N, 1897-1903), and the Storage Shed (O, 1903-1910), providing a continuous, lower wing along the west side of the original main shop. With a generally flat roof, these buildings are augmented by sheet-metal covered saw-tooth roof lights. All of these additions appear to continue the brick dentil cornice of the original Clay House. 
 Along the east side of the Main Shop, closely adjoining the Fellsway is a two-story brick Warehouse (P, 1915). This is a long flat-roof building, clad in brick with a concrete foundation. It wraps around the front of the original Main Shop and Office as well as running along its west elevation. It has a single window in the northernmost part of its elevation. This was extended by a building known as Building Nine (Q, 1936-1950), also brick faced with a concrete foundation and is punctured by square windows with metal industrial sash and concrete sills. At the northeast corner of the complex is the New Office (R, 1936-1950), a two story building. The brick façade is punctured by square windows, whose industrial sash has been replaced in most openings by modern fixed and casement windows. Cast concrete belt courses form the sills and lintels on both floors.  This is extended by a Loading Dock (S, post-1956) on the rear, connecting to that of the loading dock of the Glenwood building. The two complexes were joined in the late 1950s or early 1960s. The connecting building, one store in height, occupies most of the space that originally separated the two complexes.  A modern, two-story Office Building (T, post-1956) stands along Myrtle Street, surrounded by parking lots on three sides. This building has a flat roof, a high poured concrete foundation, and vinyl casement windows, three bays along Myrtle, two bays on both its east and west façades. 
HISTORICAL NARRATIVE     
Explain historical development of the area.  Discuss how this relates to the historical development of the community. 
The Glenwood Industrial Area represents one of the largest concentrations of industrial development along the Medford Branch Line of the Boston and Maine Railroad.  It housed a series of industries, starting with a brickworks in the third quarter of nineteenth century, later expanding to textile finishing, building materials manufacturing, a storage yard for the Metropolitan Water Works, a bedding factory, and finally a paper box factory. It is related to, but distinct from, a larger industrial area just to the south, particularly south of Riverside Avenue. This area attracted similar industries, including a larger dye works and brick yard. 
This Area’s industries relied on its siting along the Medford Branch Line. The earliest railroad in Medford opened in 1835, exceptionally early in the history of U.S. railroads, although this line did not initially provide passenger service or actually stop within the town.  This line was planned and designed by its owners, known as the Boston Associates, exclusively to transport raw materials and finished goods between Boston and the textile manufacturing city of Lowell.  Several sources suggest the route was planned to take advantage of the gentlest grades and most direct route between the two cities and that passenger service was not initially anticipated.  It therefore largely followed the route of the Middlesex Canal, avoiding the population centers of Middlesex County, including Medford and Woburn.
  The result was that within ten years, as interest in and use by passengers expanded, the construction of branch lines was required in both towns.  Glenwood, Park Street and Medford Square did not therefore acquire direct rail service until March of 1847 when it was accessed by a branch line of the Boston and Lowell Railroad.

The site on which the Area developed was historically owned by the Wellington family, who had owned land in this area since the early nineteenth century. In 1819 James and Isaac Wellington purchased over 100 acres from Captain Waymon Bradbury, and built a house at the corner of Riverside and Middlesex avenues.
  Between 1875 and 1889 the family began to develop the land. Initially subdivided for house lots, and laying out two new streets Amaranth and Anderson Avenues. The land on the west side of Anderson Avenue was not subdivided into house lots. Instead, it was sold for a large industrial complex, the first in the Area. 

The development of heavy industrial production on this site was predicated on technological advances. Industry was long tied to waterfront sites due to the requirement of water for operative power of mill facilities as well as transportation access. The post Civil War period saw the rapid development of coal-fired steam engines, providing a much greater degree of freedom in the siting of industrial facilities, where good connections to a rail line for the rapid movement of goods and fuel, as well as easy access to labor, were primary considerations.  This advance also allowed for lower, more land-extensive factory buildings, where more facilities could be arrayed on a single story, in contrast to the taller, more intensive factories at most water power sites, where land was at a premium. The Area represents a comparatively early example of a steam-power based industrial site.  The tall smokestacks that mark this are indicative of the new power source.  

The first major industrial installation in the Area was the 1886 construction of the New England- Anderson Pressed Brick Works (970 Fellsway, 1886-c.1958), on the east side of Anderson Avenue. An innovative and important national manufacturer of architectural materials, that company was founded in 1877 by James C. Anderson of Chicago. The Medford plant was opened in 1886. Anderson held the patent on processes to make plain, shaped, and ornamental pressed brick. The company was well known in the 1880s, a period well known for its interest in, an innovative use of, architectural brick work.  It credited itself in initiating this trend, developing products that were “full of artistic beauty and capabilities” out of a material then commonly associated with plain buildings. Through their patents they controlled the supply of obsidian, brown, grey, mossed, and bronzed bricks through the end of the nineteenth century.  They also manufactured a range of rock face, plain enamel, facsimile granite, and other types of brick for interior and exterior use.  Anderson brick was said to have been used on some of the best buildings of the period, including over 100 buildings in New England, and was well known throughout the country and in Europe.  The Medford facility was one of three of the Anderson Company. The other two were located in Chicago and New York. Their main facility, located in Chicago, employed over 200 people. The Glenwood facility employed 75 in 1889.  Corporate offices were located in the Rookery Building in Chicago, which employed their brick.  Through their three plants they produced over 300,000 bricks a day in the 1890s, through a highly mechanized system. Green, unburned bricks were led through a series of tunnel kilns, heated by a perpetual fire, hot enough to melt steel, fed by crude oil. The quantity of bricks produced in this manner, developed by Anderson, represented a major fuel efficiency over conventional brick production.
 The Glenwood facility contained eight kilns in a steam-powered facility. The company was part of a robust brick-making industry in this part of Medford.  Brick production took place here as early as the mid seventeenth century, and was Medford’s chief business for over a century during the colonial period. By the nineteenth century the Bay State Brick Works, later the New England Brick Works produced tens of millions of bricks annually at a large plant on the western side of Riverside Avenue. 

The New-England Anderson Brick Works was joined in 1892 by the Glenwood Dye Works (56 Amaranth Ave, 1892-1916), occupying the western portion of the site, along the newly laid-out Amaranth Avenue. The Glenwood Dye Works was founded in 1890 by Joseph W. Woods who acted as president and treasurer, overseeing a company with $100,000 in capital. Woods, based in Boston, was described on his death in 1912 as an “old time” textile manufacturer, who spent his entire career in the business, starting numerous enterprises. He patented a number of textile-related innovations.  His primary firm operated under the name Frank W. Woods and Sons Company.
  Frank Fallon served as superintendent of the Glenwood facility.  They specialized in dying, bleaching, and printing cotton goods. The company’s facility was under construction at the time of the 1892 Sanborn map, but seems to have opened shortly thereafter, as the company employed 23 men and 5 women just two years later. The company operated first on steam, later on electric power, generated by four boilers.  Woods proudly displayed the company’s wares at the 1893 World’s Columbian Exhibition in Chicago. The sanitary conditions of the factory in this period was described as “fair” by state inspectors, who found appropriate safety devices on elevators and fly-wheels. The company was one of four nation-wide to employ a new and more efficient type of cotton spreader. 
 The company underwent rapid expansion on the Glenwood site, with large additions being noted between 1892 and 1897, between 1897 and 1903, and between 1903 and 1910.  By 1910, when the complex was largely completed and by which time the plant had been electrified, they employed 100.
 The final major expansion occurred in 1916. All of the company buildings were designed and engineered in-house. The company also acted as its own contractor.
  The company had offices at 31 Bedford Street in Boston and 58 Leonard Street in New York. When fully built out the plant comprised over 125,000 square feet of space. 
The New-England Anderson Brick works company seem to not have occupied the Glenwood buildings long. A newspaper report in 1896 referred to the empty buildings of the company at Glenwood. The site had attracted attention of the police, who broke up a major dog-fighting ring in the complex in March of that year. Forty-four people were arrested in a raid on the facility and one was shot and fatally wounded while trying to escape. The complex’s architecture, consisting of a large room adjoined by many small windowless kilns, hampered the police in their effort to break up the ring, providing numerous hiding places. The dogs, still fighting at the time of the raid, were killed as they could not be separated. All arrested pleaded guilty and were fined between $20 and $25.
 The facility, still owned by the Anderson Company, is noted as “not running” on the 1897 Sanborn Map. The next year the complex was property of the Attleboro Savings Bank. 
The final major addition to the Area occurred in 1898. In May of that year, the board of the Metropolitan Water District, then engaged in the construction of major new facilities in the Middlesex Fells, purchased from the Wellington family the plot of land bordered by Myrtle Street to the north, the Medford Branch Line to the south, and Amaranth Avenue to the south. The lot contained 91,276 square feet. The lot was to become the permanent pipe yard and headquarters for the Northern Division of the Metropolitan Water Works (56 Amaranth Ave, 1901). The yard was graded that year, and a substantial picket fence was built, and the yard was paved with macadam. Derricks and scales were built to handle and weight pipes. Plans were made by prominent Boston firm of Wheelwright and Haven for the brick stable, office, and shop.
 Opened in 1900, the elaborate building designed by these architects contrasted to many of the more utilitarian buildings built by the organization. 
By 1903 the former New-England Anderson Brick works had been taken over by the Boston Steel and Iron Works. This company removed the kilns, converting the long main building into a shop, and using subsidiary spaces as a machine shop and iron shed. That operation remained in the plant less than a decade. By 1910 the building was taken over by the Simpson Brother’s Corporation. Like the complex’s original occupants, the Simpson Corporation manufactured architectural products. They specialized in the production of artificial stone, fire-proof flooring, and asphalt pavers. They made two major expansions to the plant: one large storage building on the west side of the building, shortly after acquiring it in 1910. A second major addition, 53 by 67 feet was added to the east side of the building in 1915. The company had their corporate headquarters at 166 Devonshire Street in Boston.
 
The Glenwood Dye Works ceased operations in Medford in 1926. The space was taken over for a short time thereafter by the Jackson and Newton Company. Founded in 1894, the company specialized in sash, door and blinds. They remained in the building a short time as a decade later the plant was occupied by the New England Bedding Company. The company produced Columbia branded bedding, as well as their primary group of products known as the “Comfort Line”. The Medford factory produced couches, hammock, divans, day beds, metal beds, bed springs, and cots.  The corporation as organized in Boston in 1908 and was owned by Henry Mintz of Dorchester. The company patented a gliding rocker in 1940. For much of the middle decades of the twentieth century the company was run by Ralph Feldman. Feldman, a graduate of Boston University was, along with this brother Jack, a member of the Association of Bedding Manufacturers of New England. Under Feldman’s tenure the group pushed for the construction of superhighways across Massachusetts as a spur to industrial development.
 
In 1927 the former Simpson Brother’s Plant was taken over by the Worcester Paper Box Company. Founded in 1914 the company was located in Worcester before its move to Medford. They produced set-up and folding boxes and packaging for a wide range of products including sugar, tea, coffee, and shoes.  Within a decade of their founding they occupied a 40,000 square foot facility in Worcester. The company was founded and run by Harry Posner. Born in Mohilev, Russia, Posner emigrated to the United States in 1900 at age 14, fleeing the pogroms. He first moved to New York, and then to Worcester, where a friend loaned him money to start a company making shoeboxes.  Posner was honored in 1938 by President Franklin Roosevelt for his “enlightened labor policy.”
 Among other perks, the company helped to finance workers’ homes and children’s education. In 1953 Posner made international news with a $1 million donation to Tufts University, one of the largest at the time. The donation was earmarked for medical education. He said at the time that the gift was “part payment of the blessings we enjoy in this land of freedom an opportunity.”
 Posner lived at 104 Traincroft Road in Medford. By 1958 the company employed over 300 people at its Medford plant. 

Later that year Posner’s company bought the former New England Bedding Company plant. The additional 130,000 square feet represented by the complex allowed the company to remain in Medford during a period of rapid expansion. The two previously-separate plants were joined into one by the construction of a single-story loading dock building along the plants’ north side.  The company, which formerly had been for sale, was developing a new program under its own management.
 In March of 1961 the firm was purchased by the Federal Paper Board Company. The previous year’s sales had totaled over $7 million.
 Once merged, the company called the Medford plant one of their “most efficient and well organized units, serving some of our finest and largest customers.”
 Federal Paper Board was founded in 1916 in New Jersey, and aggressively expanded throughout the twentieth century by buying numerous mills. The company was listed on the New York Stock Exchange in 1953 and began a decade of rapid growth, producing products for national companies such as GE, Colgate, and Camel Cigarettes. The Medford facility was one of several the company purchased in 1961, in addition to constructing the world’s largest paperboard mill in Sprague, Connecticut that year. 
 The company was acquired by International Paper in 1995. 
Federal Paper Board’s earnings were seriously affected by the 1970s oil embargo. This was combined, in 1977, with poor weather conditions and a drop in pulp prices, affecting the company’s timber processing business. That year the company shuttered two of its folding carton plants – a longtime mainstay of its business it was increasingly moving away from – one in Washington, Pennsylvania and the Medford plant. Around 500 people lost their jobs between the two plant closures. 

After Federal Paperboard’s departure the complex was converted for use by numerous smaller industries. The conversion process was hampered by a four-alarm fire that damaged the roof of the complex in 1982. In 2015 a portion of the wall of the mid-20th century loading dock structure collapsed from the weight of snow. Despite these setbacks, the property, now operated under the name Medford Commerce Center, houses a self-storage facility, a furniture rental company, an office of the Massachusetts Department of Revenue, and various other business.
 
Unlike the rapid changes seen at the two industrial plants, the Metropolitan Water Works Pipe yard witnessed little change in the twentieth century. In 1919 the Metropolitan Water Board merged with the Metropolitan Parks Commission and the Metropolitan Sewerage Commission to form the Metropolitan District Commission, a pioneering regional planning agency.  It continued to be used as a maintenance facility for the MDC over the following decades. That organization remodeled the Office and Tool Shop for exclusive office use in 1941.  The facility closed in the early decades of the twenty-first century. The land was sold to a private developer who demolished the former one store garage, rehabilitated the office building and converted it to residential uses, and constructed condominium buildings on the site of the former yard. That facility, known as Amaranth Place, opened in 2006.
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DATA SHEET

	MHC #
	Historic Name
	Address
	Map #
	Style
	Const. Date
	Architect(s)

	MDF.123
	Metropolitan Water Works Office and Tool Shop 
	87 Amaranth Avenue 
	A)
	Eclectic Revival 
	1901
	Wheelwright and Haven 

	MDF.XXX
	Glenwood Dye Works – Dye Room
	56 Amaranth Avenue
	B)
	Italianate/Panel Brick
	1892
	John W. Woods and Sons Company

	MDF.XXX
	Glenwood Dye Works – Stock Room
	56 Amaranth Avenue
	C)
	Italianate/Panel Brick
	1892-97
	John W. Woods and Sons Company

	MDF.
	Glenwood Dye Works – Storage Room 
	56 Amaranth Avenue
	D)
	Italianate/Panel Brick
	1901
	John W. Woods and Sons Company

	MDF.
	Glenwood Dye Works – Bleach House
	56 Amaranth Avenue
	E)
	Classical Revival
	1903-1910; 1916
	John W. Woods and Sons Company

	MDF.
	Glenwood Dye Works – Paint Room
	56 Amaranth Avenue
	F)
	Italianate/Panel Brick
	1903-1910
	John W. Woods and Sons Company

	MDF.
	Glenwood Dye Works – Varnish Room
	56 Amaranth Avenue
	G)
	Industrial/Utilitarian
	1910-1936
	Unknown

	MDF.
	Glenwood Dye Works – Soaping Room
	56 Amaranth Avenue
	H)
	Italianate/Panel Brick
	1903-1910
	John W. Woods and Sons Company

	MDF.
	Glenwood Dye Works – Boiler Room
	56 Amaranth Avenue
	I)
	Italianate/Panel Brick
	1892, 1892-97
	John W. Woods and Sons Company

	MDF. 
	New England Anderson Pressed Brick  Co. – Main Shop 
	970 Fellsway
	J)
	Romanesque
	1886
	Unknown

	MDF.
	New England Anderson Pressed Brick  Co. – Clay House
	970 Fellsway
	K)
	Italianate/Panel Brick
	1886
	Unknown

	MDF.
	New England Anderson Pressed Brick  Co. – Old Office
	970 Fellsway
	L)
	Romanesque
	1886
	Unknown

	MDF. 
	New England Anderson Pressed Brick  Co. – Machine Shop
	970 Fellsway
	M)
	Industrial/Utilitarian
	1892-97
	Unknown

	MDF.
	New England Anderson Pressed Brick  Co. – Iron Shed
	970 Fellsway
	N)
	Industrial/Utilitarian
	1892-97
	Unknown

	MDF.
	New England Anderson Pressed Brick  Co. -  Storage Shed
	970 Fellsway
	O)
	Industrial/Utilitarian
	1903-1910
	Unknown

	MDF.
	New England Anderson Pressed Brick  Co. - Warehouse
	970 Fellsway
	P)
	Industrial/Utilitarian
	1915
	Unknown

	MDF.
	New England Anderson Pressed Brick  Co. - Building 9
	970 Fellsway
	Q)
	Industrial/Utilitarian
	c.1936-50
	Unknown

	MDF. 
	New England Anderson Pressed Brick  Co. - New Office
	970 Fellsway
	R)
	Industrial/Utilitarian
	c.1936-50
	Unknown

	MDF.
	New England Anderson Pressed Brick  Co. -  Loading Dock
	970 Fellsway
	S)
	Industrial/Utilitarian
	Post 1956
	Unknown

	MDF.
	Office Building
	970 Fellsway
	T)
	Industrial/Utilitarian
	Post 1956 
	Unknown

	MDF.
	Amaranth Place Condominiums  
	1-5 Amaranth Place
	U)
	Neo-Traditional
	2006
	Unknown
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Overview Map of Area, indicating building designations of the three complexes. View looking north. (Bing Maps; Author Annotations). 
A) METROPOLIAN WATER WORKS OFFICE AND TOOL SHOP
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Office and Tool Shop of the Metropolitan Water Work, 1902, shortly after its completion. Looking south down Amaranth Avenue. (Massachusetts State Archives) 
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Office and Tool Shop of the Metropolitan Water Work, 1902, shortly after its completion. Looking south east from the yard. Notice equipment shed, now demolished, beyond (Massachusetts State Archives) 
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Office and Tool Shop of the Metropolitan Water Work, 1902, shortly after its completion. Looking northwest from yard. Note the Glenwood Dye Works behind.  (Massachusetts State Archives) 
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Equipment Shed (Demolished) of the Metropolitan Water Work, 1902, shortly after its completion. View from Yard. (Massachusetts State Archives) 
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Office and Tool Shop of the Metropolitan Water Work, view from Amaranth Avenue
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Office and Tool Shop of the Metropolitan Water Work, view from Amaranth Place parking lot. Glenwood Dye Works in background. 
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View down Amaranth Ave, showing Metropolitan Water Works, center, surrounded by Amaranth Place Condominium Buildings. Glenwood Dye Works complex on the left. 
GLENWOOD DYE WORKS. 
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South elevation, Glenwood Dye Works, showing Dye Room (B), Stock Room (C), Office, and Boiler Room (I) 
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Second floor window articulation of earliest buildings of the Glenwood Dye Works, as seen on Sotrage Room (D)  
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Glenwood Dye Works, Amaranth Avenue elevations. Showing Storage Room (D), right and Bleach House (E) 
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Glenwood Dye Works, Amaranth Avenue elevation, Bleach House (E)
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Glenwood Dye Works, North Elevation, showing Bleach House (E) and Paint Room (F)
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Glenwood Dye Works, Varnishing Room (G) and Loading Dock (S)
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Glenwood Dye Works and New England Anderson Pressed Brick Company, Loading Dock (S) and New Office (R)
NEW ENGLAND – ANDERSON PRESSED BRICK COMPANY 
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1890s woodcut of New England-Anderson Pressed Brick Company, Main shop at right (J), Clay house, at left (K), and Office (L). Note the original cap and porch on the Old Office.  It is unclear how closely this matched the appearance of the Glenwood building. Industrial woodcuts of this period were commonly exaggerated building’s size and ornamentation. King’s Handbook of the United States (1891), 400. 
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New England Anderson Pressed Brick Company. Old Office (L) and Clay House (K), showing Warehouse (P) at right. 
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New England-Anderson Pressed Brick Works, Main Shop (J) and Old Office (L) from Fellsway showing roof of Warehouse (P) 
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New England-Anderson Pressed Brick Works, Building 9 (Q) from Fellsway, with Main Shop (J) behind
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New England-Anderson Pressed Brick Works, New Office (R), Loading Dock (S), and Office Building (T), from the corner of Fellsway and Myrtle Street. 
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Office Building, Myrtle Street 
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1855 Map, showing Area marked “Wellington” Note Medford Branch Line but no industrial development 
[image: image25.png]



1889 Map, shortly after the construction of the New England-Anderson Pressed Brick Company. Note Anderson Avenue, never laid out, and house-lots proposed by the Wellington Family. 
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1892 Sanborn, showing the New England-Anderson Pressed Brick Company and the first building of the Glenwood Dye Works, then under construction. North is up. 
[image: image27.png]



1889 map showing the defunct brick works and expanded dye works.  North is right. 
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1903 Sanborn. North is right. 
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1910 Sanborn. North is up. 
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1936 Sanborn updated to 1950. North is up. 
                       National Register of Historic Places Criteria Statement Form

Check all that apply:

 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Individually eligible             FORMCHECKBOX 
   Eligible only in a historic district
 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Contributing to a potential historic district          FORMCHECKBOX 
  Potential historic district
Criteria:       FORMCHECKBOX 
   A        FORMCHECKBOX 
    B        FORMCHECKBOX 
    C     FORMCHECKBOX 
    D

Criteria Considerations:       FORMCHECKBOX 
   A      FORMCHECKBOX 
    B      FORMCHECKBOX 
   C     FORMCHECKBOX 
   D      FORMCHECKBOX 
    E      FORMCHECKBOX 
    F       FORMCHECKBOX 
    G

                   Statement of Significance by___________Zachary J. Violette______________

                            The criteria that are checked in the above sections must be justified here.
An important center of industrial production in East Medford, the Glenwood Industrial Area was home to a number of businesses of local and national importance in the late nineteenth through the mid twentieth century, including the Metropolitan Water Works, the Glenwood Dye Works, the New-England Anderson Pressed Brick Company and the Worcester Paper Box Company. These enterprises made significant contributions to their industries, developing innovative products, processes, labor relations, or institutional structures. They produced products with national distribution and their operators were frequently recognized. 

The buildings associated with these enterprises represent a variety of late nineteenth and early twentieth century industrial types, including not only conventional textile production facilities, heavy industrial shops, and dignified administrative offices.  Changes to the Area have been generally additive in nature, preserving earlier fabric.  Further, many of the latest buildings on the complex are significant for their association with the Worcester Paper Box Company.  Despite these later intrusions, the Area maintains a good deal of integrity of materials, workmanship and appearance. It meets Criteria A and C on the regional level. 

� Designated names are based on building usage in 1910, when the complex had largely taken it present shape. Letters refer to the overview map. 


� Robert F. Dalzell, Jr., Enterprising Elite, The Boston Associates and the World They Made (W.W. Norton and Company, 1987) p. 88; see also: Francis Boardman Crowninshield Bradlee, The Boston and Lowell Railroad, The Nashua and Lowell Railroad, and the Salem and Lowell Railroad (Essex Institute, 1918) and: Carl and Alan Seaburn and Thomas Dahill, The Incredible Ditch, A Bicentennial History of the Middlesex Canal (published by the authors, 1997) p. 89. 


� “Medford in 1847,” Medford Historical Register, Vol. VI  (The Society, Apr., 1903) pp. 46-47.


� Wilson Fiske, “The State’s Oldest House” Medford Historical Register Vol. 35, June 1932


� Moses King, ed. King’s Handbook of the United States .. 231, 400; Industrial Chicago: The Building Interests (Chicago: The Goodspeed Publishing Company, 1891), 687-688


� Medford Historical Society. “Making Bricks in Medford” << � HYPERLINK "http://www.medfordhistorical.org/medford-history/about-medford/making-bricks-in-medford/" �http://www.medfordhistorical.org/medford-history/about-medford/making-bricks-in-medford/�>  


� American Wool and Cotton Reporter (April 18, 1912), 521. 


� Textile World, Vol XXI, (July-Dec. 1901), 547.


� “Report Chief of District Police” in Annual Reports of the Various Public Officers and Institutions, Public Documents of Massachusetts, Vol. X (1894), 127; Pocket Edition of the Blue Book Textile Directory of the United States and Canada, 23rde d(1910-111), 519.


� American Contractor 10/13/1916, 30. 


� “Trapped by Police: Twoscore Men Arrested at a Dog Fight, Brick Works in Medford Scene of the Raid” Boston Evening Transcript March 25, 1896, 1. 


� Massachusetts Public Documents, No. 57, 1899. 


� Mill Supplies, Vol. 5 (Feb. 1915), 57. 


� “Ralph Feldman President of Bedding Manufacturers” Boston Daily Globe May 13, 1962, 34. 


� “Box Plant Workers Honor Posner Here” Boston Globe Jan 30, 1938, B25. 


� “Harry Posner, Prominent Jewish Philanthropist Dies in Boston, Was 81” Jewish Telegraph Agency August 8, 1962. 


� “Worcester Paper Box Company Buys Medford Building” Boston Daily Globe Jan 7, 1958, 22. 


� “Federal Paper Board To Acquire Worcester Paper Box of Medford” Boston Daily Globe  March 1, 1961, 14. 


� John R. Kennedy, No Room for Discouragement: The Story of the Federal Paper Box Company (New York: The Newcomen Society in North American, 1967),18. 


� “Federated Paper Board Company History” International Directory of Company Histories Vol. 8 (St. Mark’s Press, 1994). 


� “Federal Plans Expansion to Rejuvenate Income” Sunday Star News July 30, 1978, 1. 


� “Medford officials determine cause of wall collapse on Fellsway as excess snow”Wicked Local. Feb. 25, 2015. http://medford.wickedlocal.com/article/20150225/news/150228414
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